
 

 

REGULAR MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

12:00 P.M.  

228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON, TX 75570 
 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, 

on Wednesday, July 27, 2022, at 12:00 p.m., at the Riverbend Water Resources District 

(“Riverbend”) office, in the Conference Room located at 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New 

Boston, TX 75570. 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 

and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 

security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 

(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session 

on any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be 

held and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 

speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes 

per speaker. 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding the minutes for the June 22, 2022 

Regular Meeting and the July 13, 2022 True-Up Workshop. 

1



 

 

V. REGIONAL ENTITY REPORTS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

 

VI. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 

following item(s): 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the third quarter FY 2022 Financial Statements. 

 

Presentation of the third quarter FY 2022 Financial Statements will be by Tara 

Houck.   

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20220727-01 approving the 

third quarter FY 2022 Financial Statements. 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the third quarter FY 2022 Investment Report. 

 

Presentation of the third quarter FY 2022 Investment Report will be by Tara Houck.   

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20220727-02 approving the 

third quarter FY 2022 Investment Report. 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing 

the sale and or disposal of Riverbend Water Resources District assets. 

 

This item pertains to two trucks that are listed on our depreciation schedule and are 

no longer utilized by RWRD.  Typically, staff will bring a list to the board for 

consideration and approval before disposing of assets and removing them from our 

depreciation schedule.  These items are ready to be disposed of, pending board 

approval.  Staff recommends approval. 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20220727-03 authorizing the 

sale and or disposal of Riverbend Water Resources District assets. 

2



 

 

D. Discussion regarding the FY 2022 Member Entities True Up for use in FY 

2023. 

 

TWU made their annual presentation of the Member Entities’ True-Up report on 

Wednesday, July 13th.  The proposed water production rate is shown to increase 

from $1.0043/1000 Gallons used to $1.2341/1000 Gallons used.  This is a 22.88% 

increase overall.  The administrative overhead cost is proposed to go from 6.11% 

to 6.57%.  The board can act on approving the true up at this meeting, but typically 

has chosen not to act until the September meeting when the budget is considered 

and approved. 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20220727-04 approving the 

FY 2022 Member Entities’ True-Up for use in FY 2023.  

E. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing 

the Executive Director/CEO to enter into a membership agreement with the 

Local Government Purchasing Cooperative (Buyboard). 

 

This item pertains to entering into an interlocal agreement with Buyboard.  This 

agreement, if approved, would allow Riverbend to be a part of the Buyboard 

purchasing cooperative.  The cooperative offers access to competitively procured 

purchasing contracts to its members.  Being a part of the coop could save time and 

money on procurement and purchases of goods and services.  Staff recommends 

approval. 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20220727-05 authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to enter into a membership agreement with the Local 

Government Purchasing Cooperative (Buyboard). 

VII. RIVERBEND REPORTS 

 

A. Board Members 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in 

closed or executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving 

legal advice from its attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters 

(Section 551.072); discussing gifts and donations (Section 551.073); discussing 

personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing security personnel or devices (Section 

3



 

 

551.076); or discussing economic development matters (Section 551.087). If the Board 

of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on any item on this 

agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and 

will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

IX. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, August 24, 2022, at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

 

*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who 

may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices 

at (903) 831-0091, as soon as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the 

appropriate arrangements. 

4



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 

June 22, 2022  

Regular Meeting Minutes &  

July 13, 2022 

Special Called Workshop Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

June 22, 2022 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Tina Veal-Gooch, President 

of the Board, called the meeting to order at 12:03 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Tina Veal-Gooch, President 

Fred Milton, Secretary  

Steve Mayo, Treasurer 

 

Directors Absent:  

Van Alexander, Vice President  

Sonja Hubbard, Past President 

 

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

Tara Houck, CFO 

Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Fred Milton led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

None. 

 

IV. Special Agenda Items 

 

A. Presentation of the Regional Leadership Award to Marshall Wood for his leadership and 

dedication to Riverbend and to regional water development.  

 

7



 

  

Tina Veal Gooch and Kyle Dooley presented Mr. Wood with the Regional Leadership 

Award. Mr. Wood has been part of the Riverbend board since 2009. His dedication to 

regional water development has been instrumental in the success of Riverbend and all that 

has been accomplished to date. Kyle Dooley thanked Mr. Wood for his invaluable advice 

and his availability to help and be involved where he is needed. Mr. Wood expressed his 

appreciation and honor to be recognized by the Riverbend Board.  

V. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding May 25, 2022 Regular Meeting minutes. 

 

The minutes did have two minor corrections to be made before approval. Tina Veal 

Gooch was listed as present, and she was absent. In addition, Steve Mayo was present to 

accept the appointment to the Riverbend Board. 

 

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Steve Mayo to approve the Consent 

Agenda Item, with corrections as listed above. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

VI. Regional Entity Reports 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin Authority 

(SRBA). 

 

Kelly Mitchell, SRBA board member, provided an SRBA update. A meeting was held 

yesterday in Mount Pleasant. They discussed interbasin transfers as mentioned in section 

11 of the Texas Water Code. The SRBA board believes this issue will arise as we look at 

other reservoirs in the basin that may move water out of the basin.  

 

No action taken. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center (TAC). 

 

No report. No action taken.  

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

 

No report. No action taken. 

 

VII. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the Executive 

Director/CEO to execute an interlocal agreement for employees’ health benefits with TML 

Health Benefits Pool. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided information on the renewal of the TML Coverage. Staff has received 

the proposed employee medical insurance plan from TML Health Benefits Pool, which 

would become effective on 10/1/22 for the new fiscal year.  There are four new plan options 

8



 

  

that are being offered by TML for consideration for this upcoming year or we can stay with 

the current plan.  All plan options would be an increase when compared with the total cost 

from the previous year.  Those options, and the current plan costs, are shown in the agenda 

packet.  For all four options, the out-of-pocket cost and/or the deductible costs would go 

up.  The premium cost also increases between 1.93%-9.89% depending on which option is 

selected.  Staying with the current plan would increase the premium 13%, but it holds out-

of-pocket and deductible costs at the same rate as this current year.  After reviewing the 

options, staff recommends staying with the current plan for the upcoming year to keep the 

out of pocket and deductible costs the same for the employees next year. The current dental 

and vision plans will remain unchanged for this upcoming plan year. 

 

A motion was made by Steve Mayo and seconded by Fred Milton for approval of RESO 

20220622-01 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to execute an interlocal agreement 

for employees’ health benefits with TML Health Benefits Pool. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the Executive 

Director/CEO to enter into negotiations for the acquisition of land in connection with the 

construction of a regional water system. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided information on a land purchase. Riverbend is currently working on 

the required properties that will need to be acquired to construct the regional water 

treatment facilities.  We are coming to the point in the process that we may be able to start 

coming to agreements with property owners and have the need to sign contracts with them 

to get that property in hand.  This item would grant the Executive Director the authority to 

sign agreements to acquire the property.  It would also limit that authority as only up to the 

budgeted amount for the project, which is currently $800,000.   

 

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Steve Mayo to approve RESO 

20220622-02 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to enter into negotiations for the 

acquisition of land in connection with the construction of a regional water system. The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

VII.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates: 

 

Kim Keefer with Pape-Dawson provided the following update on the Regional Water 

System Project: 

 

• Documentation that is required for selection of the design consultants for the next phase 

of work is complete. This includes preparing a TWDB-appropriate advertisement and 

9



 

  

contract documents. Now, we will seek review from TWDB on them and then 

advertise, consistent with the ability to have the funds released from TWDB for design. 

• Work continues on coordination with the Army Corps of Engineers. 

• Preparation of the official submittal back to TWDB on both the environmental 

document and the EFR is ongoing. The biggest sticking point was defining the project 

in such a way that it met both TWDB’s requirements and incorporate the Corps needs 

as well. This is one of the steps to get the design monies released from TWDB. Once 

we are confident that TWDB is in sync with the document, we can advertise for the 

design consultants. 

 

Intake Permitting: One thing that has been delaying the submitting of the EID and the EFR 

to TWDB is a ruling from the Corps on whether they would allow Riverbend to pull the 

permitting portion of the intake construction away from the Ultimate Rule Curve studies. 

Dawson and Associates had a meeting with USACE on Friday. The USACE 

representatives did not see any issues, in theory, with the construction of the intake prior 

to the implementation of the Ultimate Rule Curve. That decision comes with the caveat 

that Riverbend will operate at the Interim Rule Curve that is currently in place until the 

Ultimate Rule Curve is implemented. That allows Riverbend to get lined out on what the 

Corps expects on the application for the intake. That language will need to be in the EID 

and the EFR so it can be turned to TWDB that will indicate we are clear with the Corps to 

move forward with the project so TWDB can approve our documents and release project 

funds. At this point, the RFQ process can move forward because funds should be released 

at about the same time that a design team is chosen.  

 

Ultimate Rule Curve: We should have draft programmatic agreement and environmental 

assessment documents complete by August or September. The discussion has been 

centered around how the level of the lake at the top and the bottom of the Ultimate Rule 

Curve would affect what needs to be studied both environmentally and culturally. 

Decisions made on that front will drive what the cost will be including the cost of 

mitigation. Studying the bottom of the elevation is what is causing concern. The lake has 

not historically been operated below 223. Lowering the lake below 223 brings the concern 

that wetlands, hardwood bottomlands, and cultural artifacts could be exposed and then 

would have to be studied during the NEPA process. Those findings could drive up the cost 

to implement the Ultimate Rule Curve.  

 

Member Services: A contract template for member services is in development with Kristen 

Fancher for use with members that may need water or wastewater services. A draft 

agreement is ready for review by the City of Maud. A meeting with the City of Leary is 

scheduled for Monday, June 27th.  

 

True-Up: Meeting will be July 13, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. at Riverbend offices. Typically, this 

meeting is held in August however, membership asked if it could be earlier to help with 

budget planning. The True-Up document will be ready and sent out to the member entities 

around July 8, 2022. Riverbend will also present a budget report on the Regional Water 

System Facilities Fund at the True-Up meeting on the 13th. The True-Up rate will be 

presented for approval at the following Riverbend Board meeting in late July. 

 

Region D: Meeting will be held June 29, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. at the Region 8 Educational 

Service Center in Pittsburg, Texas. 

10



 

  

No action taken.  

 

VIII.  Executive Session 

The board stood at ease at 12:40 p.m. 

 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 12:45 p.m. with quorum pursuant to sections 

551.072 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 

The board came out of Executive Session at 1:15 p.m.  

 

The board reconvened with quorum at 1:20 p.m.  

 

IX. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Riverbend True-up Workshop, July 13, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 A 

Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, July 27, 2022 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 A Texas 

Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Steve Mayo and 

seconded by Fred Milton to adjourn the meeting at 1:45 p.m. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on 

June 22, 2022, were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

11



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

True-Up Minutes 

12



 

 

  

Special Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Work Session Minutes  

July 13, 2022 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

228 Texas Ave, Suite A, New Boston, TX 75570 

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website on July 13, 2022, the Chair, Van 

Alexander, Vice President of the Board, called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.     

  

Directors Present:  

Van Alexander, Vice President  

Fred Milton, Secretary 

Sonja Hubbard, Past President 

 

Directors Absent: 

Tina Veal-Gooch, President 

 Steve Mayo, Treasurer 

 

 Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Tara Houck, Chief Financial Officer 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

        Becky Melton, Executive Assistant/HR Manager 

 

Public Present: 

See attached list. 

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Van Alexander led the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

III.  Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Presentation and discussion of Member Cities’ True-Up for use in FY 2023. 

 

Gary Smith provided information specific to completed, ongoing, and future projects 

for TWU. 

 

Gary Smith and Tricia Briggs of Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU), presented the 2021-

2022 Member Cities’ True-up for use in FY 2023. 

 

13



 

 

  

Kyle Dooley informed the Riverbend board and the guests present that the True-Up 

document will be further reviewed until it is considered for a vote by the Riverbend 

board at a regular board meeting to be held on September 28, 2022. 

 

 No action taken. 

 

B. Presentation and discussion regarding the Regional Water System Facilities Fund 

Budget and Project Update. 

 

Tara Houck and Kyle Dooley presented the Regional Water System Facilities Fund 

Budget for review.  

 

 No action taken. 

 

IV.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

No report.  

 

V. Next Riverbend Meetings & Activities:  

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, July 27, 2022, at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend 

Offices. 

 

VI. Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, Van Alexander adjourned the meeting at 

11:22 a.m.  

 

The minutes of Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting on July 13, 

2022 were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2022. 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Van Alexander, Vice President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

14



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. A. 

RWRD RESO 20220727-01 

Third Quarter FY 2022 

Financial Statements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220727-01 

 

APPROVING THE 3rd QUARTER FY 2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas Constitution, 

existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special District Local 

Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors accepts and approves 

quarterly financial statements, which provide for the fiduciary guidance of Riverbend Water 

Resources funds. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

accepts and approves the 3rd Quarter FY 2022 financials. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 27th day of July 2022 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

 

Attached: Third Quarter FY 2022 Financial Statements  

16



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2022

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Current assets: 

     Cash 247,687$               -$                           1,501,254$         1,748,941$        

     Accounts receivable 18,098 713,248 848,054 1,579,400

     Interest receivable - 8,386 - 8,386

     Due from other fund 16,274 - 8,351 24,625

     Restricted assets:

          Cash restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,695,274 1,129,680 5,824,954

          Cash restricted for construction - bond proceeds - 94,264,448 20,028 94,284,476

          Cash restricted for operations - - 301,332 301,332

Prepaid expenses - - 42,665 42,665

Inventory - - 78,716 78,716

          Total current assets 282,059 99,681,356 3,930,080 103,893,495

Noncurrent assets:

     Cash and cash equivalents - restricted for bond debt reserves - 3,051,368 1,366,216 4,417,584

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

     Equipment - - 353,334 353,334

     Utility system - - 15,475,465 15,475,465

     Intangible assets - - 257,691 257,691

     Construction in progress - 13,851,761 1,175,630 15,027,391

     Total capital assets - 16,903,129 18,628,336 35,531,465

          Total noncurrent assets - 16,903,129 18,628,336 35,531,465

TOTAL ASSETS 282,059 116,584,485 22,558,416 139,424,960

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

     Accounts payable 24,574 942,268 52,900 1,019,742

     Badge Deposits - - 950 950

     Payroll liabilities - - 61,515 61,515

     Due to other fund 8,351 16,274 24,625

     Due to North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group 36,439 - - 36,439

     Accrued interest payable - 386,180 75,468 461,648

     Accrued compensated absences - current - - 19,186 19,186

     Revenue bonds payable - current - 2,955,000 775,000 3,730,000

          Total current liabilities 69,364 4,299,722 985,019 5,354,105

Noncurrent liabilities:

     Accrued compensated absences - long term - - 55,209 55,209

     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 108,045,000 7,045,000 115,090,000

          Total noncurrent liabilities - 108,045,000 7,100,209 115,145,209

TOTAL LIABILITES 69,364 112,344,722 8,085,228 120,499,314

NET POSITION

     Net investment in capital assets - (3,842,740) 10,397,478 6,554,738

     Restricted for bond reserves - 8,082,096 2,497,243 10,579,339

     Restricted for construction - 245,158 20,028 265,186

     Unrestricted 212,694 (547,303) 2,158,439 1,823,830

TOTAL NET POSITION 212,694$               3,937,211$            15,073,188$       19,223,093$      

17



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022
Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services:

          Member fees 150,392$               -$                          -$                 150,392$      

          Army volumetric charge - - 2,434,916 2,434,916

          Army water supply charge - - 180,568 180,568

          Commercial & residential charge - - 120,627 120,627

          Other charges - - 1,625 1,625

          Total operating revenues 150,392 - 2,737,736 2,888,128

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 - - 4,500

     Analyticals - - 82,315 82,315

     Capital replacement - - 195,058 195,058

     Community relations 1,382 - - 1,382

     Conferences & seminars 2,878 - - 2,878

     Consulting 139,368 - 31,002 170,370

     Dues & memberships 7,372 - - 7,372

     Engineering services 405 - - 405

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel - - 54,515 54,515

     Equipment rental - - 2,281 2,281

     Insurance - - 36,661 36,661

     Legal & professional fees 13,936 - - 13,936

     Materials - - 117,205 117,205

     Meetings expense 2,896 - - 2,896

     Military affairs 2,750 - - 2,750

     Miscellaneous - - -

     Office supplies and expense 702 - - 702

     Permits - - 32,399 32,399

     Repairs - - 126,732 126,732

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 126,949 - 698,666 825,615

     Supplies & materials - 20,393 20,393

     Travel & training 9,042 - 9,042

     Utilities - - 127,980 127,980

     Waste disposal - - 35,828 35,828

     Water purchase cost - - 242,650 242,650

     Web design & maintenance 4,920 - - 4,920

     Regional Water System capital outlay - 7,639,624 - 7,639,624

     Overhead allocation - water - - 140,390 140,390

     Overhead allocation - wastewater - - 152,588 152,588

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater - - 153,840 153,840

          Total operating expenses 317,100 7,639,624 2,250,504 10,207,228

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (166,708) (7,639,624) 487,232 (7,319,100)
     Depreciation - - 607,833 607,833
Operating income (loss) before bond proceeds (166,708) (7,639,624) (120,601) (7,926,933)
     Bond Proceeds - 7,639,624 - 7,639,624
Operating income (loss) (166,708) - (120,601) (287,309)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenue - - 1,085,472 1,085,472

     Minimum monthly payments - 2,953,603 - 2,953,603

     Interest revenue 101 275,720 14,910 290,731

     Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments - (640,188) - (640,188)

     Project admin fees - - 27,119 27,119

     Interest expense - (520,219) (255,415) (775,634)

     Franchise fees expense - - (91,202) (91,202)

     Special projects expense (50,005) - - (50,005)

     Bond issuance costs (2,352,999) (65,000) (2,417,999)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (49,904) (284,083) 715,884 381,897

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (216,612) (284,083) 595,283 94,588

Transfers in (out) 230,000 - (230,000) -

Changes in net position 13,388 (284,083) 365,283 94,588

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 4,221,294 14,707,905 19,128,505

Net position, end of year 212,694$               3,937,211$            15,073,188$ 19,223,093$ 

18



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 203,928$       150,392$       (53,536)$        73.75%

     Total operating revenues 203,928 150,392 (53,536) 73.75%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 4,500 - 100.00%

     Advertising 1,400 - 1,400 0.00%

     Community relations 8,000 1,382 6,618 17.28%

     Conferences & seminars 4,700 2,878 1,822 61.23%

     Consulting 200,000 139,368 60,632 69.68%

     Dues & memberships 7,883 7,372 511 93.52%

     Engineering services 130,000 405 129,595 0.31%

     Legal & professional fees 27,500 13,936 13,564 50.68%

     Meetings expense 6,000 2,896 3,104 48.27%

     Military affairs 11,000 2,750 8,250 25.00%

     Miscellaneous - - 0.00%

     Office supplies & expense 3,300 702 2,598 21.27%

     Salaries, wages & benefits 163,447 126,949 36,498 77.67%

     Subscriptions 400 - 400 0.00%

     Travel & training 18,000 9,042 8,958 50.23%

     Web design & maintenance 4,000 4,920 (920) 123.00%

          Total operating expenses 590,130 317,100 273,030 53.73%

Operating income (loss) (386,202) (166,708) (219,494) 43.17%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Interest Revenue - 101 101

     Special projects expense (50,000) (50,005) (5) 100.01%

     Use of prior year equity 200,529 - (200,529) 0.00%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 150,529 (49,904) (200,433) 33.15%

Income (loss) before transfers (235,673) (216,612) 19,061 91.91%

Transfer in 230,000 230,000 - 100.00%

Change in net position (5,673) 13,388 19,061 -236.00%

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 199,306 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 193,633$       212,694$       19,061 109.84%

19



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING EXPENSES

      Expenses

Design 1,000,000$      -$               (1,000,000)$        0.00%

Planning 1,131,459 4,034,071 2,902,612 356.54%

Application 20,000 - (20,000) 0.00%

Construction 60,000,000 - (60,000,000) 0.00%

Construction Engineering 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) 0.00%

Environmental 12,881,366 392,049 (12,489,317) 3.04%

Geotechnical 487,031 772,689 285,658 158.65%

Project Mangement 864,567 2,177,384 1,312,817 251.85%

Surveying 582,395 250,963 (331,432) 43.09%

Water Distribution Modeling 40,000 - (40,000) 0.00%

Bond Counsel 250,750 (250,750) 0.00%

Capitalized Interest 4,500,000 (4,500,000) 0.00%

Financial Advisor 250,000 (250,000) 0.00%

Fiscal/Legal 17,467 (17,467) 0.00%

Issuance Costs 24,892 (24,892) 0.00%

 Administration 70,000 (70,000) 0.00%

Land/Easements Acquisition 925,000 12,468 (912,532) 1.35%

Project Legal Expenses 140,000 - (140,000) 0.00%

Contingency 19,706,278 - (19,706,278) 0.00%

Total operating expenses 103,891,205 7,639,624 (96,251,581) 7.35%

Operating income (loss) before bond proceeds (103,891,205) (7,639,624) 96,251,581 (0)

-

Bond Proceeds 103,891,205 7,639,624 (96,251,581) 7.35%

Operating income (loss) - - - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Minimum monthly payments 4,296,050 2,953,603 (1,342,447) 68.75%

     Interest Revenue 85,000 275,720 190,720 324.38%

     Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments - (640,188) (640,188)

     Interest Expense (743,455) (519,761) 223,694 69.91%

     Wire fees - (458) (458)

     Bond Issuance Costs (2,380,000) (2,352,999) 27,001 98.87%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,257,595 (284,083) (1,541,678) -22.59%

Change in net position 1,257,595 (284,083) (1,541,678) -22.59%

Net position, beginning of year 4,221,294$      4,221,294 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 5,478,889$      3,937,211$    (1,541,678)$        71.86%

20



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 3,763,387$            2,737,736$       (1,025,651)$  72.75%

     Total operating revenues 3,763,387 2,737,736 (1,025,651) 72.75%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Analytical 150,000 82,315 67,685 54.88%

     Capital replacement 286,350 195,058 91,292 68.12%

     Consulting 60,000 31,002 28,998 51.67%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 43,000 54,515 (11,515) 126.78%

     Equipment rental 11,000 2,281 8,719 20.74%

     Insurance 48,299 36,661 11,638 75.90%

     Materials 233,000 117,205 115,795 50.30%

     Permits 55,000 32,399 22,601 58.91%

     Repairs 319,000 126,732 192,268 39.73%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,109,984 698,666 411,318 62.94%

     Supplies & materials 51,700 20,393 31,307 39.44%

     Utilities 188,000 127,980 60,020 68.07%

     Waste disposal 70,000 35,828 34,172 51.18%

     Water purchase cost 307,663 242,650 65,013 78.87%

     Overhead allocation - water 201,017 140,390 60,627 69.84%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 218,350 152,588 65,762 69.88%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 220,206 153,840 66,365 69.86%

          Total operating expenses 3,572,569 2,250,504 1,322,065 62.99%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 190,818 487,232 296,414 255.34%

Depreciation 799,500 607,833 191,667 76.03%

Operating income (loss) (608,682) (120,601) 488,081 -19.81%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,489,957 1,085,472 (404,485) 72.85%

     Interest revenue 14,000 14,910 910 106.50%

     Project Admin Fees 34,600 27,119 (7,481) 78.38%

     Interest expense (512,157) (255,415) 256,742 49.87%

     Franchise fees expense (114,147) (91,202) 22,945 79.90%

     Bond issuance costs - (65,000)

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 912,253 715,884 (131,369) 78.47%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 303,571 595,283 291,712 196.09%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (230,000) - 100.00%

Change in net position 73,571 365,283 291,712 496.50%

Net position, beginning of year 14,707,905 14,707,905 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 14,781,476$          15,073,188$     291,712$      101.97%

21



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 150,392$                     151,522$                      (1,130)$                  -0.75%

          Total operating revenues 150,392 151,522 (1,130) -0.75%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 4,500 - 0.00%

     Community relations 1,382 5,227 (3,845) -73.56%

     Conferences & seminars 2,878 2,050 828

     Consulting 139,368 135,000 4,368 3.24%

     Dues & memberships 7,372 4,857 2,515 51.78%

     Engineering services 405 18,500 (18,095) -97.81%

     Legal & professional fees 13,936 5,831 8,105 139.00%

     Meetings expense 2,896 3,006 (110) -3.66%

     Military affairs 2,750 8,250 (5,500) -66.67%

     Office supplies and expense 702 742 (40) -5.39%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 126,949 111,821 15,128 13.53%

     Travel & training 9,042 4,361 4,681 107.34%

     Web design & maintenance 4,920 2,017 2,903 143.93%

     Miscellaneous - 320 (320) -100.00%

          Total operating expenses 317,100 306,482 10,618 3.46%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (166,708) (154,960) (11,748) -7.58%

     Depreciation - - -

Operating income (loss) (166,708) (154,960) (11,748) 7.58%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Special projects expense (50,005) (6,858) (43,147) 629.15%

     Interest Revenue 101 - 101

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (49,904) (6,858) (43,046) 627.68%

Income (loss) before transfers (216,612) (161,818) (54,794) -33.86%

Transfers in (out) 230,000 150,000 80,000 53.33%

Change in net position 13,388 (11,818) 25,206 -213.28%

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 185,239 14,067 7.59%

Net position, end of year 212,694$                     173,421$                      39,273$                 22.65%

22



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services: -$                            -$                             -$                      

          Total operating revenues - - -
-

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Planning 4034071 463,234

     Environmental 392049 2,287,466

     Geotechnical 772689 8,489

     Project management 2177384 962,394

     Surveying 250963 25,824

     Bond Counsel 121,785

     Financial advisor 122,900

     Fiscal/Legal 20,092

     Issance costs 16,700

     Loan origination fee 352,941

     Land Easement/Acquisition 12468 270

          Total operating expenses 7,639,624 4,382,095 3,257,529-

Operating income (loss) before bond proceeds (7,639,624) (4,382,095) (3,257,529)

     Bond proceeds 7,639,624 4,382,095 3,257,529

Operating income (loss) - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Minimum monthly payments 2,953,603 3,382,133 (428,530) -12.67%

     Interest Revenue 275,720 8,477 267,243 3152.57%

     Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments (640,188)

     Interest Expense (520,219) (148,651) (371,568) -249.96%

     Loan origination fee (2,352,999) (122) (2,352,877) -1928587.70%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (284,083) 3,241,837 (2,885,732) -89.02%

Change in net position (284,083) 3,241,837 (6,143,261) -189.50%

Net position, beginning of year 4,221,294 465,323 3,755,971 807.18%

Net position, end of year 3,937,211$                  3,707,160$                  (2,387,290)$          -64.40%

23



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services: 2,736,111$                 2,724,454$                   11,657$                 

      Other revenue 1,625 402 1,223

          Total operating revenues 2,737,736 2,724,856 12,880 0.47%
-

OPERATING EXPENSES -

     Analyticals 82,315 76,468 5,847 7.65%

     Capital replacement 195,058 121,404 73,654 60.67%

     Consulting 31,002 23,941 7,061 29.49%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 54,515 20,414 34,101 167.05%

     Equipment rental 2,281 (1,079) 3,360 -311.40%

     Insurance 36,661 34,817 1,844 5.30%

     Materials 117,205 134,301 (17,096) -12.73%

     Permits 32,399 34,074 (1,675) -4.92%

     Repairs 126,732 114,335 12,397 10.84%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 698,666 632,953 65,713 10.38%

     Supplies & materials 20,393 17,724 2,669 15.06%

     Utilities 127,980 107,075 20,905 19.52%

     Waste disposal 35,828 32,961 2,867 8.70%

     Water purchase cost 242,650 198,008 44,642 22.55%

     Overhead allocation - water 140,390 127,993 12,397 9.69%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 152,588 139,029 13,559 9.75%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 153,840 140,209 13,631 9.72%

          Total operating expenses 2,250,504 1,954,627 295,877 15.14%-

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 487,232 770,229 (282,997) -36.74%

     Depreciation 607,833 599,497 8,336 1.39%

Operating income (loss) (120,601) 170,732 (291,333) -170.64%-
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Facility charges revenue 1,085,472 1,140,503 (55,031) -4.83%

     Interest revenue 14,910 9,528 5,382 56.49%

     Other revenue 27,119 11,744 15,375 130.92%

     Interest expense (255,415) (287,250) 31,835 -11.08%

     Franchise fees expense (91,202) (81,498) 31,835 11.08%

     Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets (70,716) (9,704) -11.91%

     Bond issuance costs (65,000) - -

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 715,884 722,311 (6,427) -0.89%

Income (loss) before transfers 595,283 893,043 (297,760) -33.34%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (150,000) (80,000) 53.33%

Change in net position 365,283 743,043 (377,760) -50.84%

Net position, beginning of year 14,707,905 13,520,497 1,187,408 8.78%

Net position, end of year 15,073,188$               14,263,540$                 809,648$               5.68%

24



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. B. 

RWRD RESO 20220727-02 

Third Quarter FY 2022 

Investment Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220727-02 

 

APPROVING THE 3rd QUARTER FY 2022 INVESTMENT REPORT   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has adopted an Investment Policy as 

required by law to manage the funds of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Investment Policy Reporting Section XIII requires that the Investment 

Officer prepare and sign a quarterly investment report that includes activity on all interest-bearing 

accounts held by Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

accepts and approves the 3rd Quarter FY 2022 Investment Report. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 27th day of July 2022 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

 

Attached: Third Quarter FY 2022 Investment Report  

26



27



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. C. 

RWRD RESO 20220727-03 

Disposal of District Assets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220727-03 

 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO DISPOSE OF 

DEPRECIATED ASSETS  

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and 

reclamation district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 

Article XVI, Texas Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in 

Chapter 9601 of the Special District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has a need to dispose of assets 

that have reached their full potential and are no longer in use by the District. These assets 

are as follows: 

 

Description    Serial Number 

2011 Ford F250   1FDBF2B63BEA32589 

2009 Ford F250   1FTNF21569EA94606 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director/CEO shall 

be and is hereby authorized to dispose of the listed assets via fair market sale. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 27th day of July 2022 

 

 

 _______________________________ 

     Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

29



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. D. 

RWRD RESO 20220727-04 

Member Entities True-Up 

30



   
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220727-04 

 

ADOPTING THE FY 2022 MEMBER ENTITIES’ TRUE-UP  

AND WHOLESALE WATER RATES AND FEES OF THE 

TEXARKANA WATER UTILITIES 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is charged with oversight of the annual 

True-Up conducted amongst and between the City of Texarkana, Texas and all Member Entities; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District held an annual True-Up meeting on July 

13, 2022 at the Riverbend offices to discuss the True-Up Process and information provided by the 

City of Texarkana, Texas and its water department through Texarkana Water Utilities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 2021-2022 Member Entities’ True-Up and 

wholesale water rates and fees of the Texarkana Water Utilities. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 27th day of July 2022 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 

 

Attached: 2021-2022 Member City Rate Calculation  

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. E 

RWRD RESO 20220727-05 

Buyboard Local Government Purchasing 

61



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20220727-05 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO ENTER INTO AN 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PURCHASING 

COOPERATIVE (BUYBOARD) 
 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the above-named entity (hereinafter “Cooperative Member”) desires to 

participate in a local government cooperative purchasing program pursuant to the authority 

granted by Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, the Interlocal Cooperation Act (“Act”) 

and has elected to be a Cooperative Member in The Local Government Purchasing Cooperative 

(hereinafter “Cooperative”), a local government purchasing cooperative program created by local 

governments in accordance with and pursuant to the Act and Section 271.101, et seq., of the 

Texas Local Government Code; 

WHEREAS, the Cooperative Member, is of the opinion that participation in the 

Cooperative’s purchasing program will be highly beneficial through the efficiencies and 

potential savings to be realized; and 

WHEREAS, the Cooperative Member has reviewed the Interlocal Participation 

Agreement (“Agreement”) and seeks to adopt such Agreement in order to become a member of, 

and participate in, the Cooperative; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Cooperative Member authorizes the Executive Director/CEO, to execute the Interlocal 
Participation Agreement which includes the adoption and approval of the Organizational 
Interlocal Agreement previously executed and adopted by two or more local governments. 

PASSED and APPROVED this 27th day of July 2022 

 

      _________________________________ 
      Tina Veal Gooch, President 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
_________________________________ 

Fred Milton, Secretary 
 
Attached: Local Government Purchasing Cooperative (Buyboard) Interlocal Agreement 

62



 

 
As revised by the Cooperative Board of Trustees on January 23, 2008.            Page 1 of 7 

 
INTERLOCAL PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

 
This Interlocal Participation Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between The 

Local Government Purchasing Cooperative ("Cooperative"), an administrative agency of cooperating local 
governments, acting on its own behalf and the behalf of all participating local governments, and the undersigned 
local government of the State of Texas ("Cooperative Member").  
 

I. RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, a local government entity is authorized by the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of 
the Texas Government Code, to agree with other local government entities to form a purchasing cooperative; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Cooperative is further authorized as a local purchasing cooperative organization as set 
forth in Section 271.101, et seq., of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to facilitate compliance with state procurement 

requirements, to identify qualified vendors of commodities, goods and services, to relieve the burdens of the 
governmental purchasing function, and to realize the various potential economies, including administrative cost 
savings, for Cooperative Members; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and obligations contained 
herein, the undersigned Cooperative Member and the Cooperative agree as follows. 

 
II.  TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1. Adopt Organizational Interlocal Cooperation Agreement.  The Cooperative Member by the execution 

or acceptance of this Agreement hereby adopts and approves the Organizational Interlocal Agreement 
dated January 26, 1998, which agreement is incorporated herein by reference (and is available from the 
Cooperative upon request).  The Organizational Interlocal Agreement established the Cooperative as an 
administrative agency of its collective participants, and Cooperative Member agrees to become a 
participant or additional party to that Organizational Interlocal Agreement.   

 
2. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the date it is executed by both parties and 

shall automatically renew for successive one-year terms unless sooner terminated in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement.  If the Cooperative Member is an existing Cooperative Member that joined 
the Cooperative by executing a participation agreement which authorized amendment upon the 
Cooperative providing 60 days notice, then this Agreement will be deemed an Amendment by Notice, 
which will be effective on the 61st day that the Cooperative Member is sent notice of this document.  In 
addition, this Agreement will continue to automatically renew for successive one-year terms on the 
anniversary date of the Cooperative Member’s initial term (not the effective date of the Amendment by 
Notice), unless the Agreement is sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions herein.  

 
 
 

63



 

 
As revised by the Cooperative Board of Trustees on January 23, 2008.            Page 2 of 7 

3. Termination. 
 

(a) By the Cooperative Member.   This Agreement may be terminated by the Cooperative Member 
at any time by thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Cooperative, provided any amounts 
owed to the Cooperative and any vendor have been fully paid. 

 
(b) By the Cooperative. The Cooperative may terminate this Agreement by: 

 
(1) Giving ten (10) days notice by certified mail to the Cooperative Member if the Cooperative 
Member breaches this Agreement; or 

 
(2) Giving thirty (30) days notice by certified mail to the Cooperative Member with or without 
cause.  

 
(c) Termination Procedure.  If the Cooperative Member terminates its participation under this 

Agreement or breaches this Agreement, or if the Cooperative terminates participation of the 
Cooperative Member, the Cooperative Member shall bear the full financial responsibility for all 
of its purchases made from vendors under or through this Agreement. The Cooperative may seek 
the whole amount due, if any, from the terminated Cooperative Member. In addition, the 
Cooperative Member agrees it will neither be entitled to a refund of any membership dues paid 
nor a distribution which may occur after the Cooperative Member terminates from the 
Cooperative. 

 
4.     Payments by Cooperative Member.    

 
(a)   The Cooperative Member agrees to pay membership fees as may be required by the Cooperative.  

The Cooperative will provide the Cooperative Member with 60 days prior written notice of any 
change in the membership fee before such fee becomes effective.  Membership fees are payable 
by Cooperative Member within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the Cooperative or its 
designee, unless otherwise provided by law. A late charge amounting to the maximum interest 
allowed by law, but not less than the rate of interest under Section 2251.021, et seq., Texas 
Government Code, shall begin to accrue daily on the 46th day following the due date and 
continue to accrue until the membership fees and late charges are paid in full. The Cooperative 
reserves the right to collect all funds that are due to the Cooperative in the event of termination 
by Cooperative Member or breach of this Agreement by Cooperative Member. 

 
(b) In addition to membership fees, the Cooperative Member will make timely payments to the 

vendor for the goods, materials and services received in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the bid invitation, instructions, and all other applicable procurement documents.  
Payment for goods, materials and services and inspections and acceptance of goods, materials 
and services ordered by the procuring Cooperative Member shall be the exclusive obligation of 
the procuring Cooperative Member, and not the Cooperative. Furthermore, the Cooperative 
Member is solely responsible for negotiating and securing ancillary agreements from the vendor 
on such other terms and conditions, including provisions relating to insurance or bonding, that 
the Cooperative Member deems necessary or desirable under state or local law, local policy or 
rule, or within its business judgment.     

 

64



 

 
As revised by the Cooperative Board of Trustees on January 23, 2008.            Page 3 of 7 

     5.      Payments by Vendors.  The parties agree that the Cooperative will require payment from vendors which 
are selected to provide goods, materials or services to Cooperative Members. Such payment (hereafter 
“Vendor Fees”) may be up to two percent (2%) of the purchase price paid by Cooperative Members or a 
flat fee amount that may be set from time to time by the Cooperative Board of Trustees. Cooperative 
Member agrees that these Vendor Fees fairly compensate the Cooperative for the services and functions 
performed under this Agreement and that these Vendor Fees enable the Cooperative to pay the 
administrative, endorsement, licensing, marketing, and other expenses involved in successfully operating a 
program of electronic commerce for the Cooperative Members. Further, Cooperative Member 
affirmatively disclaims any rights to such Vendor Fees, acknowledging all such fees are the property of 
the Cooperative. Similarly, in no event shall a Cooperative Member be responsible for payment of Vendor 
Fees.   

 
6.   Distribution.  From time to time, and at the sole discretion of the Cooperative Board of Trustees, the 

Cooperative may issue a distribution to Cooperative Members under a plan developed by the Cooperative 
Board of Trustees. Cooperative Member acknowledges that a distribution is never guaranteed and will 
depend on the overall financial condition of the Cooperative at the time of the distribution and the 
purchases made by the Cooperative Member. 

 
7.    Administration.  The Cooperative may enter into contracts with others, including non-profit associations,     

for the administration, operation and sponsorship of the purchasing program provided by this Agreement.  
The Cooperative will provide reports, at least annually, to the Cooperative Member electronically or by 
mail. Cooperative Member will report purchase orders generated under this Agreement to the Cooperative 
or its designee, in accordance with instructions of the Cooperative. 

 
8.   BuyBoard®.  Cooperative Member will have a non-exclusive license to use the BuyBoard electronic         

purchasing application during the term of this Agreement.  Cooperative Member acknowledges and agrees 
that the BuyBoard electronic application and trade name are owned by the Texas Association of School 
Boards, Inc. and that neither the Cooperative nor the Cooperative Member has any proprietary rights in the 
BuyBoard electronic application or trade name. Cooperative Member will not attempt to resell, rent, or 
otherwise distribute any part of the BuyBoard to any other party; nor will it attempt to modify the 
BuyBoard programs on the server or acquire the programming code. Cooperative Member may not attempt 
to modify, adapt, translate, distribute, reverse engineer, decompile, or disassemble any component of the 
application. Cooperative Member will use the BuyBoard in accordance with instructions from the 
Cooperative (or its designee) and will discontinue use upon termination of participation in the Cooperative.  
Cooperative Member will maintain equipment, software and conduct testing to operate the BuyBoard 
system at its own expense.   

 
III.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
1. Amendment by Notice.  The Board may amend this Agreement, provided that prior written notice is 

sent to the Cooperative Member at least 60 days prior to the effective date of any change described in 
such amendment and provided that the Cooperative Member does not terminate its participation in the 
Cooperative before the expiration of said 60 days.     

 
2.   Authorization to Participate and Compliance with Local Policies.  Each Cooperative Member 

represents and warrants that its governing body has duly authorized its participation in the Cooperative 
and that the Cooperative Member will comply with all state and local laws and policies pertaining to 
purchasing of goods and services through its membership in the Cooperative.  

65



 

 
As revised by the Cooperative Board of Trustees on January 23, 2008.            Page 4 of 7 

  
3.   Bylaws.  The Cooperative Member agrees to abide by the Bylaws of the Cooperative, as they may be 

amended, and any and all written policies and procedures established by the Cooperative. 
 
4. Cooperation and Access.  The Cooperative Member agrees that it will cooperate in compliance with 

any reasonable requests for information and/or records made by the Cooperative. The Cooperative 
reserves the right to audit the relevant records of any Cooperative Member. Any breach of this provision 
shall be considered material and shall make the Agreement subject to termination on ten (10) days 
written notice to the Cooperative Member. 

 
5. Coordinator.  The Cooperative Member agrees to appoint a program coordinator who shall have 

express authority to represent and bind the Cooperative Member, and the Cooperative will not be 
required to contact any other individual regarding program matters. Any notice to or any agreements 
with the coordinator shall be binding upon the Cooperative Member. The Cooperative Member reserves 
the right to change the coordinator as needed by giving written notice to the Cooperative. Such notice is 
not effective until actually received by the Cooperative.  

 
6. Current Revenue. The Cooperative Member hereby warrants that all payments, fees, and 

disbursements required of it hereunder shall be made from current revenues budgeted and available to 
the Cooperative Member.   

 
7. Defense and Prosecution of Claims.  The Cooperative Member authorizes the Cooperative to regulate 

the commencement, defense, intervention, or participation in a judicial, administrative, or other 
governmental proceeding or in an arbitration, mediation, or any other form of alternative dispute 
resolution, or other appearances of the Cooperative in any litigation, claim or dispute which arises from 
the services provided by the Cooperative on behalf of its members, collectively or individually.  Neither 
this provision nor any other provision in this Agreement will create a legal duty for the Cooperative to 
provide a defense or prosecute a claim; rather, the Cooperative may exercise this right in its sole 
discretion and to the extent permitted or authorized by law. The Cooperative Member shall reasonably 
cooperate and supply any information necessary or helpful in such prosecution or defense. Subject to 
specific revocation, the Cooperative Member hereby designates the Cooperative to act as a class 
representative on its behalf in matters arising out of this Agreement. 

 
8. Governance.  The Board of Trustees (Board) will govern the Cooperative in accordance with the 

Bylaws.   
 
9.   Jurisdiction/Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Texas and, to the extent permitted by law, venue for all disputes arising under this 
Agreement shall lie in Travis County, Texas. 

 
10.   Legal Authority. The Cooperative Member represents and warrants to the Cooperative the following:  
 

(a) It meets the definition of “Local Government” or “State Agency” under the Interlocal Cooperation 
Act (“Act”), Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code.  
 

66



 

 
As revised by the Cooperative Board of Trustees on January 23, 2008.            Page 5 of 7 

(b) The functions and services to be performed under the Agreement will be limited to “Administrative 
Functions” as defined in the Act, which includes purchasing.     
 

(c) It possesses the legal authority to enter into this Agreement and can allow this Agreement to 
automatically renew without subsequent action of its governing body.  
    

(d) Purchases made under this Agreement will satisfy all procedural procurement requirements that the 
Cooperative Member must meet under all applicable local policy, regulation, or state law. 
 

(e) All requirements – local or state – for a third party to approve, record or authorize the Agreement 
have been met. 

 
11. Disclaimer.  THE COOPERATIVE, ITS ENDORSERS (TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL 

BOARDS, INC., TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES, AND TEXAS MUNICIPAL LEAGUE) 
AND SERVICING CONTRACTOR (TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS, INC.) DO 
NOT WARRANT THAT THE OPERATION OR USE OF COOPERATIVE SERVICES WILL BE 
UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE. 

 
 THE COOPERATIVE, ITS ENDORSERS AND SERVICING CONTRACTORS, HEREBY 

DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IN REGARD TO ANY 
INFORMATION, PRODUCT OR SERVICE FURNISHED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY AND ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

 
12.    Limitation of Liability.  Without waiver of the disclaimer or other limitation of liability in this 

Agreement, the parties agree that:   
 
 (a) Neither party waives any immunity from liability afforded under law;  
  

(b) In regard to any lawsuit or formal adjudication arising out of or relating to this Agreement, neither 
party shall be liable to the other under any circumstance for special, incidental, consequential, or 
exemplary damages;  

 
(c) The maximum amount of damages recoverable will be limited to the amount of fees which the 

Cooperative received as a direct result of the Cooperative Member’s membership fee and purchase 
activity, within 24 months of when the lawsuit or action was filed; and  

  
(d) In the event of a lawsuit or formal adjudication the prevailing party will be entitled to recover 

reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to Section 271.159 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 

Without waiver of the disclaimer or other limitation of liability in this Agreement, the parties further 
agree to limit the liability of the Cooperative’s servicing contractor, endorsers and sponsors (including, 
but not limited to, the Texas Association of School Boards, Inc., Texas Association of Counties, Texas 
Municipal League, and educational service centers) up to the maximum amount each received from or 
through the Cooperative, as a direct result of the undersigned Cooperative Member’s membership fee 
and purchase activity, within 24 months of the filing of any lawsuit or action.   

  

67



 

 
As revised by the Cooperative Board of Trustees on January 23, 2008.            Page 6 of 7 

13.    Limitation of Rights.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, nothing in this 
Agreement, is intended to confer upon any person, other than the parties hereto, any benefits, rights, or 
remedies under or by reason of this Agreement. 

 
14. Merger/Entirety.  This Agreement, together with the Cooperative’s Bylaws and Organizational 

Interlocal Agreement, represents the complete understanding of the Cooperative and Cooperative 
Member.  To the extent there exists any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and that of prior 
agreements, the terms of this Agreement shall control and take precedence over all prior participation 
agreements. 

 
15. Notice.   Any written notice to the Cooperative shall be made by first class mail, postage prepaid, and 

delivered to the BuyBoard Administrator, Texas Association of School Boards, Inc., P.O. Box 400, 
Austin, Texas 78767-0400.  Notices to Cooperative Member may be made by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, and delivered to the Cooperative Member’s Coordinator or chief executive officer (e.g., 
superintendent, city manager, county judge or mayor). 

 
16.   Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement shall be declared illegal or held unenforceable for any 

reason, the remaining portions shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
17.     Signatures/Counterparts.  The failure of a party to provide an original, manually executed signature to 

the other party will not affect the validity, enforceability or binding effect of this Agreement because 
either party may rely upon a facsimile signature as if it were an original.  Furthermore, this Agreement 
may be executed in several separate counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which 
shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
18.     Warranty.  By the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the undersigned individuals warrant that 

they have been duly authorized by all requisite administrative action required to enter into and perform 
the terms of this Agreement. 

 
 
 

[Signature page follows.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

68



 

 
As revised by the Cooperative Board of Trustees on January 23, 2008.            Page 7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, acting through their duly authorized representatives, accept this 
Agreement. 
 
TO BE COMPLETED BY THE COOPERATIVE: 
 
The LOCAL GOVERNMENT PURCHASING COOPERATIVE, 
as acting on behalf of all other Cooperative Members 
 
 
By:                Date:     
 Dan Troxell, Ph.D., Secretary 
 
           
 
TO BE COMPLETED BY COOPERATIVE MEMBER: 
[Signature required unless accepted as an Amendment by Notice as described in the Agreement.] 
 
 

_________________________________________________________________ 
 (Name of Local Government) 
 
 
By: __________________________________________________  Date: _________________ 

Signature of authorized representative of Cooperative Member  
 
__________________________________________________ 
Printed name and title of authorized representative 

 
Coordinator (Program Contact) for the Cooperative Member is: 
    ___________________________________ 

Name 
___________________________________ 
Title 
___________________________________ 
Mailing Address 
__________________________________ 
City 
Texas, _____________________________ 

(zip) 
___________________________________ 
Telephone 

     
                                     ___________________________________  
    Email 
 

69



 
 
 

BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

of 
 
                       ______________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Local Government)  
 

Cooperative Member 
 
 
WHEREAS, the above-named entity (hereinafter “Cooperative Member”) desires to participate in a local 
government cooperative purchasing program pursuant to the authority granted by Chapter 791 of the Texas 
Government Code, the Interlocal Cooperation Act (“Act”) and has elected to be a Cooperative Member in The 
Local Government Purchasing Cooperative (hereinafter “Cooperative”), a local government purchasing 
cooperative program created by local governments in accordance with and pursuant to the Act and Section 
271.101, et seq., of the Texas Local Government Code;  
 
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Member, is of the opinion that participation in the Cooperative’s purchasing 
program will be highly beneficial through the efficiencies and potential savings to be realized; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Member has reviewed the Interlocal Participation Agreement (“Agreement”) and 
seeks to adopt such Agreement in order to become a member of, and participate in, the Cooperative; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. The Board of Trustees hereby adopts the above-referenced Agreement as presented, thereby becoming a 
member of The Local Government Purchasing Cooperative; and  
 
2. The Board of Trustees of the Cooperative Member authorizes its Board President, Superintendent or the 
Superintendent’s designee to execute the Interlocal Participation Agreement which includes the adoption and 
approval of the Organizational Interlocal Agreement previously executed and adopted by two or more local 
governments. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board as of the following date: 
 
______________________________. 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
        President, Board of Trustees 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________  
 Secretary, Board of Trustees 

70


	Insert from: "Buyboard Interlocal Agreement.pdf"
	III.  GENERAL PROVISIONS




